
 

 

 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Monday, 18th July, 2022 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 
 

The Guildhall 

 
 



2 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 

Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 

to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the 

Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking 

space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which 

can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to 

attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make 

any necessary arrangements to assist your visit. 

 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 

Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 

preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II 

of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 

the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 

public inspection. 

 

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 

on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 

providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 

proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 

attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and 

for any footage to be broadcast or published.   

 

Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are published 

on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted in the 

meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council he/she will 

be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the 

Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider 

that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision. 

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day 

before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 

 

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 

papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 

film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services 

Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  

committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk. 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information. 

 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 

electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 

worcester.gov.uk 

 

 



3 

Health and Wellbeing Committee 
Monday, 18 July 2022 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

Chair: Councillor Lynn Denham (L) 
Vice-Chair: Councillor Stephen Hodgson (C) 

 
Councillor Basharat Ali (L) 

Councillor Steve Cockeram (G) 
Councillor Shafaz Ditta (C) 
Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C) 

Councillor Karen Lawrance (LD) 
 

Councillor Robyn Norfolk (L) 

Councillor Tom Piotrowski (G) 
Councillor James Stanley (C) 
Councillor Richard Udall (L) 

 

 

  
C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  

LD = Liberal Democrat 

 
AGENDA 

 

Part 1 
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 
1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

3. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 
question, or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the 

Committee. 
 

4. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 4 

 Of the meeting held on 20th June 2022 to be approved and signed. 

 

5. Herefordshire & Worcestershire Integrated Care Partnership and The 
Development of a Worcester City District Collaborative  

Page(s): 5 - 12 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Lloyd Griffiths, Corporate Director, Operations, Homes and 
Communities 
Tel: 01905 722314 



4 

 That the Committee:  
 

1. Notes the dissolution of Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) as replaced 
by the Herefordshire & Worcestershire Integrated Care Partnership on 1st 

July 2022; 
 

2. Notes the Council will be a core member of the Worcester City District 

Collaborative, which help enable the community and voluntary sector (which 
are vital to health and care services across the City) to participate, in the 

development of the ICP, ensuring local integration and resident need are at 
the heart of the new system; and 

 

3. Notes that a further report on progress of the Worcester City District 
Collaborative will be presented to this Committee in six months’ time.  

 

6. Active Travel  

Page(s): 13 - 16 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  David Sutton, Deputy Director - Corporate Policy and Strategy 
Tel: 01905 722302 

 That the Committee notes the content of this report. 
 

7. Quarter 1 Performance Report For 2022/23  

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Joanna Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer 
Tel: 01905 722407 

 That the Committee notes the Council’s Quarter 1 performance for 2022/23. 

 
(Report to follow) 

 

8. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chair is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 

consideration. 
 



HEALTH AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE 

 
20th June 2022 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Lynn Denham in the Chair 

 Councillors Ali, Cockeram, S. Ditta, 
Mrs L. Hodgson, S. Hodgson (Vice-Chair), 

Lawrance, Norfolk, Piotrowski, Stanley and 
Udall 

 

Officers: Lloyd Griffiths, Corporate Director – 
Operations, Homes and Communities 

Tom Mountford, Head of Homes and 
Communities 

 

1 Appointment of Substitutes  
 

None. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest  

 
None. 

 
3 Public Participation  

 

Rob Collier spoke to the Committee about helping to promote and encourage 
active travel. He highlighted a “bike bus” initiative which he had been 

instrumental is setting up to encourage children attending North Worcester 
Primary School to cycle. He summarized the scheme and invited the Committee to 
consider what more the City Council could do to support children walking and 

cycling to school. He was willing to help to set up similar schemes in other schools 
and invited Members to contact him direct if they wish to discuss this with him. 

The Chair thanked him for his comments and stated that she would share details 
of the bike bus scheme with Officers. 
 

4 Minutes  
 

With reference to minute 41 (Access-able Contract), the Corporate Director – 
Operations, Homes and Communities highlighted a number of developments since 

the last meeting, including updating some of the Guides. Officers will work with 
the Council’s Communications Team to publicise the scheme. 
 

With reference to minute 43 (Proposed Committee Performance Scorecard for 
2022/23) the Corporate Director – Operations, Homes and Communities explained 

that the quarter 1 performance report will be presented to the July meeting of this 
Committee. The content will be shared with the Chair and Vice-Chair in advance of 
publication.  

 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 21st March 2022 be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 20th June 2022 2 

 
 

5 Update On The Delivery Of The Child Poverty Task & Finish Group 

Recommendations  
 

The Committee considered a six-monthly update on progress against the 
recommendations of the Task and Finish Group and the work that is planned 
during 2022/2023. The Corporate Director – Operations, Homes and Communities 

presented the report and summarised the main points in relation to each of the 
recommendations. 

 
The report emphasised the need for partnership working and highlighted the role 
of the newly formed Worcester City District Collaborative Group. Reference was 

also made to the recently established Cost of Living Crisis Task and Finish Group 
and the forthcoming Worcester City ‘Cost of Living Crisis’ Conference. It was 

anticipated that a plan for utilising the £50,000 corporate funding allocated by the 
Council to address food poverty will be developed during July, working in 
consultation with the Chair and Vice-Chair of this Committee and Group Leaders, 

using Managing Director’s Urgency Powers to approve such plans and associated 
expenditure in consultation with those Members referred to above. 

 
The Corporate Director responded to questions and comments from Committee 
Members on various aspects of the report. 

 
The Chair acknowledged the amount of work being undertaken by Officers to take 

forward the recommendations, and also the work of community organisations and 
volunteers that support the delivery of the many initiatives referred to in the 

report. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee note:  

 
1. the contents of this report, and in particular the completion of the 

Worcester City Child Poverty Joint Strategic Needs Assessment by 
Worcestershire County Council’s Public Health Service, attached at 
Appendix 1; and 

 
2. that a further update report will be presented to this Committee in 

January 2023. 
 

6 Covid-19 Community Recovery Strategy - Progress Report  

 
The Committee considered an update report on progress against the 9 priority 

areas of the Strategy. The Head of Homes and Communities presented the report 
and summarised the main points. 
 

It was explained that it is intended to discontinue a stand-alone Recovery 
Strategy and to undertake this work as business as usual through existing 

workstreams, multi-agency partnership working and existing and emerging 
oversight arrangements. 
 

Officers responded to questions and comments from Committee Members on 
various aspects of the report. 

 
In the ensuing discussion, the following main points were made: 
 

Page 2



 20th June 2022 3 

 
 

 Reference was made to a question asked at the March Council meeting 

about whether it is possible for the Council to offer free lateral flow tests to 
Worcester residents, as the Leader had offered look into this. The Corporate 

Director – Operations, Homes and Communities stated that he would follow 
this up and provide a response in writing. 

 

 The Chair made reference to Worcestershire County Council’s Household 
Support Fund and expressed her concern that the County Council will only 

be providing meal vouchers for the first two weeks of the school summer 
holiday. 

 

 There was a discussion about the provision and removal of carpets by 
registered social landlords when a tenancy changes. Members were advised 

that each provider is likely to have its own policy, but Officers can 
investigate and provide a written response. 

 

In conclusion, the Chair highlighted that ongoing monitoring of Community 
Recovery Strategy Priorities will in future fall within the remit of various different 

Committees, with Domestic Abuse and Shielding & Vulnerable Population both 
coming under this Committee. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Committee note:  
 

1. the contents of this report and in particular the progress made in  
respect of the strategy, and the national move towards ‘living with 

COVID-19;’ and 
 
2.  the intention to discontinue the strategy in recognition of the ongoing 

work that continues to be carried out across priority areas. 
 

7 Any Other Business  
 
The Chair referred to the comments made under public participation and during 

the meeting with regard to Active Travel. She highlighted this Committee’s 
achievement in successfully making the case to establish an Active Travel Officer 

post. The job description and role profile were still in development. It will fall to 
this Committee to consider other aspects of the wider active travel agenda with 
which the City Council is involved. 

 
 

 
Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 9.00p.m. 
 

 
 

 
Chair at the meeting on 

18th July 2022 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 

Report to: Health and Wellbeing Committee, 18th July 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director - Operations, Homes & Communities 
 

 
Subject: HEREFORDSHIRE & WORCESTERSHIRE INTEGRATED CARE 

PARTNERSHIP AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF A WORCESTER CITY 
DISTRICT COLLABORATIVE 

 

1. Recommendation 
 

That the Committee:  
 

1.1 Notes the dissolution of Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) as replaced 
by the Herefordshire & Worcestershire Integrated Care Partnership on 1st 
July 2022; 

 
1.2 Notes the Council will be a core member of the Worcester City District 

Collaborative, which help enable the community and voluntary sector 
(which are vital to health and care services across the City) to participate, 
in the development of the ICP, ensuring local integration and resident need 

are at the heart of the new system; and 
 

1.3 Notes that a further report on progress of the Worcester City District 
Collaborative will be presented to this Committee in six months’ time.  

 

2. Background 
 

2.1 The Health and Care Act 2021 introduces significant reforms to the organisation and 
delivery of health and care services across England. Its main purpose is to establish 
a legislative framework that supports collaboration and partnership-working to 

integrate services for patients. Among a wide range of other measures, the Act also 
includes targeted changes to public health, social care and the oversight of quality 

and safety. 

2.2 This key change is the formalisation of Integrated Care Systems (ICSs) which are 
constituted partnerships that bring providers and commissioners of NHS services 

across a geographical area together with local authorities and other local partners to 
collectively plan health and care services to meet the needs of their local population. 

2.3 Each ICS will be made up of two parts: an integrated care board (ICB) and an 
integrated care partnership (ICP). ICBs will be tasked with the commissioning and 
oversight of most NHS services and will be accountable to NHS England for NHS 

spending and performance.  

2.4 ICPs will bring together a wider range of partners, not just the NHS, to develop a 

plan to address the broader health, public health, and social care needs of the 
population. ICSs have the potential to reach beyond the NHS to work alongside local 
authorities and other partners to address the wider determinants of health. 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



2.5 One of the key opportunities for the Council is that much of the activity to integrate 
care and improve population health will be driven by organisations collaborating over 

smaller geographies within ICSs, often referred to as ‘places’, and through teams 
delivering services working together on even smaller footprints, usually referred to 
as ‘neighbourhoods’. Unlike previous reforms, which have over specified at a local 

level, the Act gives local leaders flexibility in how they setup these more local 
arrangements. 

2.6 This report details how these proposed changes to the health system, and in 
particular the development of ‘District Collaboratives’ will be key in helping the 
Council deliver its City Plan 2022 - 2027 and challenge the health inequalities that 

exist, and that have been further exacerbated by the Covid-19 pandemic and more 
recently the cost of living crisis. 

 
3. Information  

 
3.1 Integrated care is about giving people the support they need, joined up across local 

councils, the NHS, and other partners. It removes traditional divisions between 

hospitals and family doctors, between physical and mental health, and between NHS 
and council services. In the past, these divisions have meant that too many people 

experienced disjointed care. 

3.2 Integrated care systems (ICSs) are new partnerships between the organisations that 
meet health and care needs across an area, to coordinate services and to plan in a 

way that improves population health and reduces inequalities between different 
groups. 

3.3 Most health and care services need to be planned, designed and delivered on a 
smaller geographic footprint and population size than the ICS. This means that 
within each ICS there are several smaller planning footprints – termed “places” – 

where health and care organisations come together to improve patient pathways and 
deliver more joined up care. In the context of ICSs, broadly speaking, a “place” is 

intended to be an area with a population size of between 250,000 and 500,000 
which is meaningful for the local community and organisations serving it.  

3.4 Herefordshire and Worcestershire Health and Care system was formally designated 

as an ICS on the 1st April 2021 having operated as a Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership (STP) since 2016.   The CCG and all its functions has 

transferred to become a statutory Integrated Care Board for both Counties on the 
1st July 2022. Up to date information for Herefordshire & Worcestershire ICS is now 
in place at Herefordshire and Worcestershire ccg - Integrated Care System. 

3.5 Information on the Herefordshire & Worcestershire ICS system from the above web 
pages is included at Appendix 1 and the key elements are as follows – 

 The H&W ICS covers a population of 806,000 and which has been served by 2 
County Councils, 6 District Councils, 3 NHS Health & Care Trusts, 1 Clinical 
Commissioning Group and 15 Primary Care Networks 

 The proposed ICS governance arrangements will see a single Integrated Care 
Board and Integrated Care Partnership for Herefordshire & Worcestershire 

 At place level it is proposed to bring together a Worcestershire Partnership 
Board, which will be mirrored in Herefordshire 

Page 6

https://herefordshireandworcestershireccg.nhs.uk/ics


3.6 Within each ‘place’ there are several neighbourhoods, which cover a smaller 
population size of roughly 30,000 to 50,000 people. They often focus on integrating 

primary, community and social care through multidisciplinary teams and joint 
working arrangements. Neighbourhoods are therefore key to the NHS’s commitment 
to deliver more care as close to home as possible. The proposal for Worcestershire is 

for District Collaboratives to fill the neighbourhood space. 

3.7 Quite early on in the response to the COVID-19 Pandemic, a Worcester City Incident 

Management Team Meeting was set up that was chaired by The Corporate Director 
for Operations, Homes & Communities and attended by key multi-agency partners 
including Worcestershire County Council Public Health, Worcester City Primary Care 

Network, Clinical Commissioning Group, South Worcestershire Healthcare, NHS, 
University of Worcester, Heart of Worcester College, Worcestershire Regulatory 

Services, Police, Worcester Community Trust and Community Services and 
Communications colleagues from the Council. 

3.8 The early work of the group focussed on COVID-19 response, and in particular 
supporting the track and trace effort, developing local communication campaigns to 
encourage compliance with national guidance and vaccination uptake. 

3.9 Many of the group noted that for the first time in their careers, the IMT provided an 
opportunity for key agencies to meaningfully work together on delivering actions 

around a joint priority that every organisation had a stake in and could add value to. 

3.10 The work of this group and its neighbouring IMTs across the Districts of 
Worcestershire has been recognised both locally, regionally and nationally and in 

particular the way in which ‘hyper local’ vaccination clinics were set up and operated 
out of local community venues in order to remove the barriers many hard to reach 

communities face in trying to reach and access more central clinics. 

3.11 Throughout the period of the Pandemic, preparation and transition work has 
continued with shadow arrangements developed for the Herefordshire & 

Worcestershire ICS and discussions commenced in 2021 around what collaboration 
would look like at neighbourhood level. 

3.12 It became clear to many working in this field that the District IMT groups had the 
basis of being converted into District Collaboratives. There were several reasons for 
this –  

 The District IMTs had become outcome and delivery focussed, and within the 
new ICS arrangements District Collaborative’s are clearly the ‘doing’ group; 

 The District IMTs already had multi-agency partnership across all key sectors 
and good relationships and a shared understanding of each other’s work had 
been developed since April 2020; 

 The District IMT’s are well placed to hit the ground running as they had 
developed a positive profile and reputation generated from its work and 

outcomes over the last 24 months 

3.13 On Friday 10th June 2022, a first meeting of stakeholders and partners that will play 
a key role in a Worcester City District Collaborative was held at Worcester 

Community Trust’s Warndon Hub. The event provided an opportunity to reflect and 
celebrate the work of the Worcester City COVID-19 IMT Group, but more importantly 

Page 7



it was the start of the conversation about the transition required to become a District 
Collaborative. 

3.14 As well as the nuts and bolts of setting up a new group such as Terms of Reference 
and associated arrangements, a Worcester City Health & Wellbeing Profile was 
presented by Matt Fung (Worcestershire County Council Public Health) and partner 

organisations in the room were provided with an opportunity to talk about their role 
in the health & wellbeing agenda so that we could start to build up a shared 

understand and knowledge of the wider Worcester City system. 

3.15 It will be important for the Collaborative partners to be aware of each other’s 
statutory and non-statutory priorities but more importantly where are the overlaps 

and synergies that provide opportunities for organisations to add value to each 
other’s work. 

3.16 At its first meeting the Collaborative agreed a draft overarching vision which is to 
‘Work together for all to be well in Worcester City’. The emerging priorities for 

the Collaborative include – 

 Tackling loneliness and social isolation - with key benefits of preventing 
early onset on diabetes and dementia. 

 Providing the best start in life during maternity and children’s health – 
with key benefits of reducing childhood obesity and better health outcomes in 

later life. 

 Targeted engagement where inequality and / or deprivation is linked 
to health outcomes – with key benefits of improved access to health checks 

and screening for prevention and early diagnosis of illness. 

3.17 The principle aims of the collaborative will be –  

 Contribute to the development and delivery of the Worcestershire Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy and the Integrated Wellbeing Offer. 

 Develop and deliver the Worcester City Health and Wellbeing Action Plan.  

 Identify and understand local issues, trends and underlying causes relating to 
public health. 

 To share intelligence, learning and best practice for the delivery of effective 
collaboration, providing bespoke customer centric services to improve health 
outcomes. 

 Monitor and report on delivery of projects.  

 Showcase existing projects and share best practice and information on health 

and wellbeing services.  

3.18 Following the first meeting on it has been agreed that the District Collaborative will 
meet 6 weekly initially to ensure that there is frequent enough engagement to drive 

the development of priority projects for 2022/2023 through specific working groups 
that will work into the Collaborative on a project specific basis. 

 

Page 8



3.19 A key principle of the Being Well is to consider where work is best led and 
undertaken, acknowledging the vital role of Districts and other more local 

organisations, and not attempting to duplicate this work at county level. Formation 
of District Collaboratives aim to build on this to ensure local systems continue to 
work together.  

3.20 To support the work developing integrated approaches, funding of up to £25k per 
year for three years (up to March 2025) is available per District Council area to 

support District Collaborative’s facilitate and pump prime work being undertaken. 
The purpose of the funding is to support an increase in capacity and fund dedicated 
projects and activities which deliver Being Well e.g., asset mapping, training analysis 

and network support. 

3.21 As set out in the recommendations of this report, it is intended to bring an update 

report back to this Committee, on the work of the Worcester City District 
Collaborative in January 2023.  

3.22 In the interim however, officers will work closely with the Chair and Vice Chair of this 
Committee in respect of early developments of the group including its arrangements, 
priorities and reporting procedures. 

 
Ward(s):   All 

 
Contact Officer: Lloyd Griffiths – Corporate Director (Operations, Homes & 

Communities) 

 E-mail: Lloyd.griffiths@worcester.gov.uk  
 Tel: 01905 722371 

 
Background Papers: N/A  

Page 9

mailto:Lloyd.griffiths@worcester.gov.uk


Appendix 1 – Information Taken from Herefordshire & Worcestershire ICS 
Website 

 

 
 

The following infographic gives an outline of the composition of our system 
resources, priorities and governance: 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 10



Below is the current governance of the ICS which will evolve as it moves through 
its transition year: 

 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 1  

 

 
 

Report to: Health and Wellbeing Committee, 18th July 2022 
 

Report of: Deputy Director, Corporate Policy and Strategy  
 

 
Subject: ACTIVE TRAVEL 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Committee notes the content of this report. 
 

2. Background 
 

2.1 “For most people, the easiest and most acceptable forms of physical activity are 
those that can be built into everyday life. Examples include walking or cycling 
instead of travelling by car, and using stairs instead of lifts. ‘Active travel’ (or active 

transportation or mobility) means walking or cycling as an alternative to motorised 
transport (notably cars, motorbikes/mopeds etc) for the purpose of making everyday 

journeys”1. 

2.2 The Department for Transport advise that “local authorities are well placed to plan 
and provide space for inclusive active travel infrastructure and accompanying 

behavioural change programmes. For Local Transport Authorities (LTAs) and 
combined authorities, doing so is part of their responsibilities on highways and road 

safety” 2. Whilst Worcestershire County Council is the LTA in this area the City 
Council can play a significant role in promoting active travel. 

2.3 At the meeting of this committee in November 2021 Members considered a report on 

establishing a potential role of Active Travel Officer and resolved to receive a further 
report at the following meeting in February. 

2.4 At the February 2022 the Committee considered a proposal for an Active Travel 
Officer to be employed by the Council. The Committee agreed to recommend to 
Policy & Resources Committee the allocation of £100,000 of revenue funding to be 

able to recruit a dedicated Active Travel Officer for a 3-year fixed term period. This 
was later approved as part of the 2022/23 budget. 

2.5 Following the declaration of a Climate Emergency at full Council in July 2019, the 
Council created and recruited to a new post of Environmental Sustainability Officer. 
This role developed the Environmental Sustainability Strategy 2020-2030 approved 

by Council in November 2020 and has produced and coordinates delivery of the 
Environmental Sustainability Action Plan. The Plan was approved by Environment 

Committee which last received a progress report on the plan at its June 2022 
meeting. 

2.6 The Sustainability Action Plan includes three projects specific to active travel, namely 

ESS-03 Low emission business travel (for staff), ESS-04 Low emission commuting 
(for staff), and ESS-08 Active Travel (Town Investment Plan project). 

Page 13 Agenda Item 6



 2  

 

2.7 At its December 2021 meeting, Personnel & General Purposes Sub-Committee 
agreed to provide and improve facilities to support staff to cycle to work. The 

approved report details how a £50,000 capital spend (subject to Council approval) 
will provide or enhance existing secure staff cycle parking and changing facilities at 
Council premises.  

2.8 Worcester City Council has a number of current projects aimed at supporting its staff 
to cycle and walk instead of using a car. These are a Cycle to Work Scheme, staff e-

bikes, the Sustainability and Health in Future Transport (SHIFT) scheme, Bikeability 
training and planned new facilities at council buildings. 

2.9 The Worcester Town Investment Plan includes an allocation of £4.5M for an Active 

Travel project with a total value of £9M which will link new and enhanced routes with 
the existing network and provide a new bike hire scheme. 

2.10 The business case for the Town Investment Plan Active Travel project was approved 
at Policy and Resources Committee in March 2022 and government funding was 

confirmed in April 2022. 

2.11 This report updates on the progress with the above Active Travel projects. 
 

3. Information  
 

Active Travel Officer. 

3.1 Funding has been allocated for a three-year post at the grade of Professional 
Technical level A (PTA). A job description and person specification has been drafted 

and the post will be advertised shortly. The new post of Sustainability Officer (Active 
Travel) will sit alongside the existing Sustainability Officer post (at the higher grade 

of PTC) that reports to the Deputy Director, Corporate Policy and Strategy. 

3.2 It should be noted that the bike hire element of the Town Investment Plan Active 
Travel project also includes for a temporary staff resource for procurement, 

mobilisation and contract management of the hire scheme. This will equate to 12 
months full time and then 4 years and then 5 years at 0.2 FTE. 

3.3 These posts will work together to deliver against active travel and sustainability 
priorities as agreed by Members at Committee. It is recommended that an active 
travel action plan is developed and reported to this Committee. 

Town Investment Plan – Active Travel Project 

3.4 The project is unchanged from that proposed in the Town Investment Plan approved 

by Policy and Resources Committee in January 2021. 

3.5 A Treasury Green Book compliant ‘five case business case’ was approved by Policy & 
Resources Committee in March 2022. The covering report and the executive 

summary to the business case provide a helpful overview of the project. 

3.6 TIP funding of £4.5m will support investment of over £10m from Worcestershire 

County Council and Worcester City Council to deliver the following: 

3.6.1 a new bridge across the River Severn between Kepax Park and Gheluvelt Park, 
known as The Kepax Bridge 

Page 14

http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=400&MId=4823&Ver=4
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=400&MId=4942&Ver=4
http://committee.worcester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=400&MId=4942&Ver=4


 3  

 

3.6.2 Three new or improved active travel routes, which will be hard surfaced and of a 
suitable width for cycling and walking. Members have previously raised questions 

regarding lighting. Additional lighting is not included in this project for reasons of 
cost and in some locations impact on biodiversity. The routes are: 

3.6.2.1 Extension of the surfaced section of the canal towpath to create a hard 

surfaced route from Diglis to Blackpole and Sixways. 

3.6.2.2 Surfacing of the existing route South from Diglis Bridge to link to Dace Close 

which gives access to the Ketch / Carrington Bridge underpass 

3.6.2.3 New surfaced routes around Ronkswood that will link Nunnery Wood School, 
the Ronkswood community, Worcester Royal Hospital & County Hall, and 

Lyppard Grange. 

3.6.3 A bike hire / bike share scheme that will provide flexible hire by the minute with 

conventional and e-bikes picked up and returned at designated unmanned 
locations across the City. Full details of this scheme will be developed during the 

procurement of an operator. 

3.7 The County Council (as Highway Authority) will deliver the majority of the project 
directly with the exception of the bike hire scheme which will be led by the City 

Council. 

3.8 Policy & Resources Committee delegated authority to the Corporate Director Finance 

and Resources and the Corporate Director Planning and Governance to undertake 
further due diligence and complete the appropriate funding agreements for the 
externally delivered projects. Procurement of the Bike hire scheme, which is likely to 

be a multi-year contract with a value of several hundred thousand pounds, will be 
subject to further Member decision.  

3.9 Details of highway works will be subject to the County Council’s standard local 
consultation and engagement and details will be made available to local Members. 

Staff Active Travel 

3.10 Work has commenced to install changing facilities at the Guildhall and a secure bike 
shelter will be installed during the summer. Upgraded changing and bike parking 

facilities will also be installed at Astwood Cemetery and Warndon Depot in the 
Autumn. 

3.11 The Sustainability and Health in Future Transport (SHIFT) scheme is due to be 

launched to staff imminently. This scheme allows staff to log commuting and work 
mileage by cycle which the Council will support through a donation to the Mayor’s 

charity on a “per kilometre” basis. 

3.12 The Parking team are now using e-bikes on a business-as-usual basis and are using 
them to access areas outside the city centre. The Council has two e-bikes for staff to 

use for travel whilst at work. These are currently at the Museum and Art Gallery can 
be booked by staff using the well-established room booking portal in MS Teams. 

3.13 Staff regularly using e-bikes for work have received ‘Bikeability’ training and this is 
also being offered to all staff wishing to use the bike hire scheme. 

Page 15



 4  

 

3.14 The Council continues to offer cycle mileage expenses to staff and Members, the 
Cycle to Work salary sacrifice scheme which reduces the cost of cycle purchase for 

employees. 

Action Plan and performance reporting 

3.15 The Town Investment Plan Active Travel Project is included in the Health & Well-

being Committee’s performance scorecard and will also be subject to more detailed 
reporting as appropriate. Drafting an action plan for approval by and regular 

reporting to this Committee will be developed by the Active Travel Officer when in 
post. 

 

 
Ward(s):   All 

Contact Officer: David Sutton, Deputy Director, Corporate Policy & Strategy  
 01905 722303, david.sutton@worcester.gov.uk 

 
Background Papers: 1 Working Together to Promote Active Travel, A briefing for local 

authorities, Public Health England, 2016 

2 Active Travel: A local Authority Toolkit, Department for 
Transport, April 2022 

3 Active Travel Project, Report to Health & Wellbeing Committee, 
February 2022 
4 Worcester Town Investment Plan, Worcester City Council 

Worcester Towns Fund Board - Worcester City Council, January 
2022 

5 Active Travel Project Business Case, Report to Policy & 
resources Committee, March 2022 
 

 
  

Page 16

mailto:david.sutton@worcester.gov.uk
https://www.worcester.gov.uk/council/worcester-towns-fund-board

	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Herefordshire & Worcestershire Integrated Care Partnership and The Development of a Worcester City District Collaborative
	6 Active Travel

